Hospitals & Asylums                                 
INTERNATIONAL COURT OF JUSTICE

Peace Palace, 2517 KJ The Hague, Netherlands
Article 11 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 999 U.N.T.S. 171, of Mar. 23, 1976 states, 
“No one shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of inability to fulfill a contractual obligation” 

Art. 11(2) of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 217 A (III) of 10 December 1948 states, 
“No one shall be held guilty of any penal offence on account of any act or omission which did not constitute a penal offence, under national or international law.”

The United States responds that Title 11USC§1111 bankruptcy proceedings involve the dismissal of the criminal case and voluntary financial settlement in accordance with the written reorganization plan of the corporate executive.  

JUDGMENT: There is no cause to detain alleged financial or fraud criminals.  The competent JUDGE acquits and releases such prisoners immediately and restores rights to the extent that that person is a competent executive and another person is found to do the tasks that such a person is not able to perform.  Whereas the disability of the American Judge is so endemic the authority to execute such releases and dismissals has been extended to encompass all government officials and authorized individuals taking the time to write a writ of habeas corpus. 

US SUPREME COURT

Washington DC, 20543-001

Motion for Specific Pardons or Judgments of Acquittal under Article 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure for insufficient evidence to Sentence or sustain a “criminal” conviction in all Fraud and Anti-Trust cases.
Free Insider Trader Settlement
Assistant Attorney General for Anti-Trust R. Hewitt Pate v. Criminal Deputy Attorney General John Comey 

Andrew Wiederhorn, co-CEO Fog Cutter Capital Group Inc. v. NASDAQ Certiorari for the US Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals 

Martha Stewart, Peter Bacanovic & Samuel Waksel v. Security Exchange Commission Certiorari for the US 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals No. 04-0220-cr
John & Timothy Rigas v. Security Exchange Commission Certiorari for the US 2ndCircuit Court of Appeals
SEC, Lea Fastow & Kenneth Lay from Enron v. FBI & Andrew Weissmann, director of the Justice Department's Enron Task Force Certiorari for the US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals
Erpenbeck FamilyCo.  and Executives of the former Peoples Bank of Northern Kentucky v. FBI et al Certiorari for the US 6th Circuit Court of Appeals No. 04-3456&7 

Attorney General John Ashcroft &  Assistant Attorney General for Anti-Trust R. Hewitt Pate v. Criminal Deputy Attorney General James Comey
This Motion for a Judgment of Acquittal is issued in behalf of Martha Stewart, Andrew Wiederhorn, Peter Bracanovic, who need to be acquitted before they begin serving their sentence, Kenneth Lay who needs to be acquitted before he is criminally convicted John Finnan, Marc Menne, John Rigas and his son Timothy who need to be acquitted before they are sentenced and Bill Erpenbeck, Michelle Marksberry, Tony and Lori Erpenbeck and Lea Fastow who need to be acquitted and released from penal institutions.  This law holds true for all white collar fraud offenders.  

This federal Statute of Fraud case involves the transfer authority under EO-13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force, from the Criminal Division to the Anti-Trust Division to stop the recent corporate fraud-sentencing spree.  On Wednesday June 23, 2004 in Washington DC R. Hewitt Pate, Assistant Attorney General for the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice heralded President Bush’s signature of law H.R. 1086, which includes the Antitrust Criminal Penalty Enhancement and Reform Act of 2004. The Act increases the maximum Sherman Act corporate fine to $100 million, the maximum individual fine to $1 million.  The provisions of the Act for amnesty applications and the Corporate Leniency Program help protect free and open competition while jail time for white collar offenders is the most obvious proof of “restraint of trade” that exists to mankind.  The proposed Sherman Act jail term of 10 years clearly needs to be abolished and consideration given for the abolishment of the outstanding 3 year jail term under Blakely v. Washington No. 02-1632.  

The case of Erpenbeck Family and Executives of the former Peoples Bank of Northern Kentucky v. FBI et al Certiorari for the US 6th Circuit Court of Appeals No. 04-3456&7 clearly demonstrates how E.O.  13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force (2002) was initially successful in settling disputes but that the record was raided Criminal Division Deputy Attorney General John Comey, District Judge Spiegel and other white collar prosecutors whose judicial misconduct became so severe this 2004 that it is the judges who need to be politically persecuted and imprisoned in contravention to Art. 5 (he) of the Statute for the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia until all their hostages are released. We are predisposed not to authorize large “criminal penalty” anti-trust settlements as criminal trials are not the appropriate vehicle for the transfer of large sums of money.  By enforcing criminal penalties for fraud and anti-trust criminal prosecutors are in such restraint of trade that it is the “Court” and not the “Corporation” who are guilty of felonious restraint and monopolization of trade under the Sherman Anti-Trust Act 15USC(1)§1.  The Anti-Trust Division of the Department of Justice must take responsibility for the Corporate Fraud Task Force from the Criminal Division and fraud offenders shall henceforth be settled out of court by lawyers, with a settlement plan approved by shareholders and executives alike, or in trials where the Judge has sworn to be civil.  The deal regarding H.R. 1086 is, “repeal the criminal sentencing if you want $100 million settlements”.   For peace and security the Department of Justice must transfer the entire Corporate Fraud Task Force from the jurisdiction of the Criminal Division Deputy Attorney General James Comey to that of the Anti-Trust Division Assistant Attorney General R. Hewitt Pate of the Department of Justice so that these financial cases can be processed without the commission of any violent crimes. 

Art. 11 of the Covenant of Civil and Political Rights 2200A (XXI) of 16 December 1966 draws the line, “No one shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of inability to fulfil a contractual obligation”.  All fraud and white collar offenses clearly fall under the protection of this law as fraud is by definition a dispute, in writing, between a merchant and purchaser.  Art. 11 (2) of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 217 A (III) of 10 December 1948 goes on to state, “No one shall be held guilty of any penal offence on account of any act or omission which did not constitute a penal offence, under national or international law, at the time when it was committed”.  Lawyers must be prepared to motion for the dismissal in all of these mistakenly criminal “white collar” cases under Title 11 Chapter 11 §1112(a&b)3 to reinstate immunity in these bankruptcy cases that would in the past decade normally have been touted as civil claims or security fraud class actions to just settle the shareholders.  The most corrupt criminal justice system in the world must not be permitted to destroy all of corporate America’s success because they see allegations of fraud as a way to bypass the constitutional immunity granted to bankruptcy offenders in state constitutions. Judges must not jail representatives of the American corporate community, the biggest bank in the world, in their moment(s) of bankruptcy settlement under 11USC§1111.  

Donald Trump himself entered into Chapter 11 Bankruptcy for his Casinos that amount to 2% of his total holdings, DLJ Merchant Banking Partners, an arm of Credit Suisse First Boston, and Trump would invest $400 million to help the company pay down its $1.8 billion in debt and cut interest payments in half. Trump, the chairman, chief executive and largest shareholder, would see his stake in the company shrink from 56 percent to 25 percent, with Credit Suisse owning more than two-thirds of the company. Trump himself would contribute nearly $71 million, $55 million of which would be in the form of a co-investment with Credit Suisse and $15.9 million of which would come from his Trump Casino Holdings notes. Trump would also give up trademark rights to his name and likeness for use in connection with casino operations. Trump casinos in both Las Vegas and Atlantic City have been undercut by the growth of gaming operations on Native American reservations and the weaker economy. In June, MGM Mirage agreed to purchase the Mandalay Resort Group for $4.8 billion in cash, followed a month later by a deal for Harrah's Entertainment Inc. to buy Caesars Entertainment Inc. for about $5.2 billion, and further consolidation in the industry is expected.  This would be the second time that Trump casinos have been through bankruptcy. In 1992, the three casinos he then owned - the Taj Mahal, Castle and Plaza - ended up in Chapter 11, burdened by more than $1 billion in debt and hurt by the 1990-91 recession. Trump later regained control of the casinos.  The bankruptcy plan is expected to cut Trump Hotels' debt by $544 million to $1.25 billion, drop the average interest rate on debts from about 12 percent to less than 8 percent, and cut annual interest expenses by more than $110 million.  A majority of those holding $1.3 billion worth of bonds backed by Trump Taj Mahal and Trump Plaza have signed off on the plan, which calls for them to receive $282 million in cash, $851 million in new debt and $107 million in stock in the new company.  Those who own bonds backed by Trump Marina and Trump Indiana - which operates a riverboat casino in Gary, Ind. - have also been offered a combination of cash, stock and debt but have not agreed to the restructuring plan yet.  Trump Hotels, through its subsidiaries, owns and operates four properties under the Trump brand name. They include Trump Taj Mahal Casino Resort, Trump Plaza Hotel and Casino and Trump Marina Hotel Casino, all in Atlantic City; and Trump Casino Hotel, the riverboat in Gary, Ind. The company also manages Trump 29 Casino, a native American owned facility near Palm Springs, Calif. Trump Hotels had $1.16 billion in 2003 revenues and has about 8,500 employees. Trump Hotels stock was suspended from trading by the New York Stock Exchange. The company's stock traded as high of $34 in 1996 before beginning a long slide to less than $2 a share on Monday August 9, 2004. 

This persecution of the rich under E.O.  13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force (2002) has become so endemic this 2004 that Vice Presidential Candidate John Edwards has been reprimanded for the persecution of former Enron executive Kenneth Lay in contravention to the right to be considered innocent until proved guilty by law in accordance with Art. 14 (2) of the International Covenant of Civil and Political Rights 2200A (XXI) of 16 December 1966, Lea Fastow was sua sponte sentenced to a year in prison the very next day. Mr. Edwards, a former trial lawyer, had called Mr. Law a “crook” and claims to hope that, “values return to normal”.  Mr. Edwards appears to have been chastised by the “tough prosecutor” John Kerry at the Rome interview, that same weekend, where they decided that being rich is one of the greatest things that makes America great.  The Basic Principles on the Independence of the Judiciary proscribe that the judiciary shall decide matters before them impartially, on the basis of facts and in accordance with the law, without any restrictions, improper influences, inducements, pressures, threats or interferences, direct or indirect, from any quarter or for any reason. Art. 43(A) of the Law of Administration for the State of Iraq for the Transitional Period
 elaborates, “the judiciary is independent. It shall in no way be administered by the executive authority, including the Ministry of Justice”.  Federal judges must totally avoid white collar crime or the judges themselves shall be indicted for scandalously abetting an indiscreet criminal prosecution of respectable American citizens by Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and/or Corporate Fraud Task Force.  It is the responsibility of the Court to ensure that businessmen and women settle their claims, they must not destroy their business because of a political persecution of the wealthy.

There is simply insufficient evidence to support a “criminal” conviction in all cases of corporate fraud.  All such “white collar” criminal trial cases and detainees must be Acquitted under Rule 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.  The only criminals in the white collar court room who meets the Class A and B felony threshold for being incarcerated at all as set forth by probation statute 18USC(227)§3563 are the prosecutors whose deprivation of rights under color of law 18USC(13)§242 and kidnapping 18USC(55)§1201 are considered a capital crime, more serious than the common kidnapping whereas the fraud offenders are totally forgiven in common law.  Baxter v. Palmigiano, 425 U.S. 308, 318 (1976) directs us to forgive lies made in criminal trials as any harm done by lying is eliminated by the intervention of the truth and the horrible “lie” of the prison bed sentencing is far more distorting to the truth and cannot therefore be acted upon purely on the basis of the fraud and lying it inspires.  

The Kennedy Commission reports the United States incarcerates more people than any other nation.  Incarceration rates in state and federal prisons rose from 216,000 in 1974 to 1,355,748 in 2002. Between 1980 and 2002 the correction population has skyrocketed.  In 1980 1,118,097 were on probation, 183,988 were in jail, 319,598 were in prison, 220,438 were on parole for a total correctional population of 1,842,100.  In 2002 2,995,165 were on probation, 665,475 were in jail, 1,367,856 were in prison, 753,141 were on parole for a total correctional population of 6,732,400.  The growth in total correctional population between 1980 and 2002 is 365%.   Detention rates are much higher in the United States at 1 person in 143 than in Western Europe where the rate is more like 1 in 1,000.  Racial disparities in sentencing have become more pronounced in recent years.  1930, whites were 77 percent of prison admissions, African Americans were 22 percent, and other racial and ethnic groups were only 1 percent.  By 2000, the racial and ethnic makeup of American prisons was virtually reversed, with African Americans and Latinos comprising 62.2 percent of the total federal and state prison population.  40% of the people behind bars are African American.  In some cities 50% of the African American community is under the supervision of the criminal justice system.  The cost of housing, feeding and caring for the prison population is estimated at $40 billion.  Each inmate costs an average of $26,000.  In the federal system sentencing guidelines are a leading cause for the increase in prison population.  Justice Kennedy observed that the legal profession has an “obsessive focus” on the process for determining guilt or innocence, to the exclusion of what happens after a conviction has become final and the prisoner is taken away. Under 18 U.S.C. § 3582(c)(1)(A)(i)  the Department of Justice ensure that full and fair consideration is given to prisoner requests for sentence reduction, including the implementation of procedures to assist prisoners who are unable to advocate for themselves; The average time served rose from 18 months in the 1980’s to 5 years in the 1990’s. Blakely v. Washington No. 02-1632. June 24, 2004 eliminated sentencing guidelines schemes and, 20 years of sentencing reform. Sentences imposed under such guidelines in cases currently pending on direct appeal, or in cold habeas petitions, are in jeopardy.  In both legislative and litigate practice Criminal sentences must be adjusted downward rather upward, mandatory minimum schemes eliminated and acquittals the norm for most crimes where there are significant mitigating factors, ie do not meet the thresholds of a Class A or B felony with real non-dismissable crimes against humanity.  Until we reduce our prison population by developing a more internationally acceptable sentencing system we must acquit and release all but the most dangerous of offenders.  

In the Preliminary Defense of Former Yugoslavian Detainees of July 22, 2004 motioning for a Judgment of Acquittal for December 25, 2004 in behalf of Slobodan Milosevic v. the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia that is partially in regards to allegations made in Prosecutor v. Slobodan Milosevic ICTY IT-02-54  Predrag Banovic v. Secretary in regards to Prosecutor v. Predrag Banovic (IT-02-65/1)  and Milan Babic v. Secretary in regards to Prosecutor v. Milan Babic Case No. IT-03-72-S in favor of a $1 billion yearly settlement to Serbia & Montenegro by NATO nations who participated in the bombings, it was discovered that there is a great deal of poetic justice in the role of the Sentencing Secretary who is liable to be sued after a person is detained for more than 48 hours to instill a consciousness regarding the general unlawfulness of lengthy imprisonment increasing the likelihood of making a clever request, in writing, for the Modification of Judgment to the International Court of Justice under Art. 100 of the Rules of Court  that is required in nearly every criminal case that has ever made it to sentencing in the world.  In the United States of America this tradition of the modification of judgment is primarily found in the appellate practice where sentences are regularly suspended pending appeal where they are struck down after the evidence has been satisfactorily reviewed.  Due to human error on the part of the Appeals Court it is necessary to submit clear and convincing evidence to the Court of Appeals before the trial is over to win a stay of the sentence pending the appeal.  The Secretary needs only to read the case and write a more just sentence, of not less than one page, that should be approved by the Court on the basis of its merit as a habeas petition.  Cheney v. USDC No. 03-475 of June 24, 2004 reinforces the need for freedom of information and the publication of requested documents to expedite settlement and avoid disciplinary action.  One may also Acquit upon the basis of the mitigating facts presented by the press or eye witnesses when the Court fails to furnish evidence in a timely fashion.  Rasul v. Bush No. 03-334 of June 28, 2004 reaffirmed the constitutional right to habeas review that is explained in Rumsfield v. Padilla No. 03-1027 of June 28, 2004.  The writ of habeas corpus is more gracefully granted by the Court in the form of a Judgment of Acquittal under Rule 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure for an insufficiency of evidence to sustain a criminal conviction or Rule 29(c)2 when a guilty verdict has been returned yet the Court decides to acquit.  It is not recommended to uphold the guilty verdict in any of the following cases as the fraud conviction has suddenly become so prejudicial to these respectable merchants that we risk being misunderstood if we sustain any sort of criminal conviction whatsoever and must therefore Acquit for a general insufficiency of evidence to sustain a “criminal” conviction under Rule 29(a).  Due to the public nature of these criminal trials it will be necessary to notify the public of these Acquittals as many people are concerned for their life and liberty.

Certiorari for the US 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals 

40 Foley Square, New York, NY 10007
Martha Stewart, Peter Bacanovic & Samuel Waksal v. Security Exchange Commission 04-0220-cr
On July 16, 2004 U.S. District Judge Miriam Goldman Cedarbaum sentenced Martha Stewart to 5 months in prison, 5 months in house arrest and 2 years supervised probation it has all been suspended pending the review of the US 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals.  Like the majority of prisoners of conscience in the United States Ms. Stewart needs to be acquitted under Rule 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure as there is insufficient evidence to support a “criminal” conviction.  In the Judgment of February 27, 2004 JUDGE CEDERBAUM wrote 03 Cr. 717 (MGC) whereby she did the opposite and dismissed the security fraud settlement for a criminal tampering with the jury conviction of her own as the result of penalizing the Superceding Indictment US v. Martha Stewart and Peter Bacanovic S1 03 Cr. 717 written by DAVID N. KELLEY United States Attorney.   The Court is prohibited under Art. 11 of the International Covenant of Civil and Political Rights 2200A (XXI) of 16 December 1966 from detaining people failing their contractual obligations.  Former Merrill Lynch & Co. stockbroker Peter Bacanovic, was convicted along with Stewart of lying about the 2001 stock sale.  It seems to be too much to even consider these contracting parties of having lied at all.  The only lies appear to be written by the US Attorney and Judge to perpetrate the willful and maliscious sort fraudulent and false statements enjoyed by the jailers of the FBI.  Baxter v. Palmigiano, 425 U.S. 308, 318 (1976) directs us to forgive lying and perjury as these honest mistakes are eliminated by the intervention of the truth, that is the sole purpose of having a trial in any case.  In this case the truth is that the Judge, US Attorney and FBI have conspired to tamper with a jury in order to kidnap MARTHA STEWART and PETER BACACNOVIC and both CRIMINAL and CIVIL CHARGES must be DISMISSED as the lying is clearly a lie.  A member of the prosecutors team and a jurist also confessed to lying.  The Trial Court is obviously unconstitutionally biased towards protecting the lies of the government thereby fostering an environment that is not conducive to the truth and with their association with Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) whose very name implies that they are up to some enormous FIB.  We cannot therefore settle for less the full restoration of civil and political rights for Martha Stewart and Peter Banovic, anything less would be an affront to the truth, in fact both are entitled to $100,000 settlement from the Security Exchange Commission in apology for the Judicial Misconduct of the Federal Court and $30,000 fine she was forced to pay for her freedom.  With this $100,000 Martha Stewart could make a Million Dollars this 2004 under her Employment Agreement of 1999 that must be updated to refer her to the US Court of International Trade, in New York City, for the settlement of any legal disputes regarding her or Stewart Living OmniMedia,Inc, as the Federal Courts have become unsafe.  

The Superceding Indictment US v. Martha Stewart and Peter Bacanovic S1 03 Cr. 717  DAVID N. KELLEY United States Attorney, informs us that prior to forming MSLO, MARTHA STEWART had been licensed by NASD, a national securities association, to sell securities and was employed as a securities broker from in or about 1968 through in or about 1973. On March 22, 2002, STEWART was nominated to serve on the board of directors of the NYSE. On June 6, 2002, STEWART was elected to the NYSE board of directors, a position which she held until she resigned on October 3, 2002.  PETER BACANOVICwas licensed by NASD to sell securities. BACANOVIC was employed as a securities broker with the title "Financial Advisor" at Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. ("Merrill Lynch"), a broker-dealer headquartered in New York, New York, at a branch office located at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York. December 31, 2001.  At all times relevant to this Indictment, MARTHA STEWART maintained securities brokerage accounts at Merrill Lynch. PETER BACANOVIC was the registered representative for STEWART's Merrill Lynch accounts and had a close personal relationship with STEWART. Because of commissions generated from her accounts and accounts that BACANOVIC obtained as a result of his relationship with STEWART, as well as her high public profile, STEWART was one of BACANOVIC's most important brokerage clients.  

On or about October 31, 2001, ImClone submitted to the United States Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") a Biologics Licensing Application ("BLA") for approval of Erbitux (the "Erbitux BLA"). Pursuant to FDA regulations, within 60 days.    On the morning of December 27, 2001, between 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. (EST).  Douglas Faneuil, an associate not under dangerous confidentiality regulations, informed PETER BACANOVIC that Samuel Waksal and a member of his family (the "Waksal Family Member") were seeking to sell all the ImClone shares they held at Merrill Lynch, then worth over $7.3 million (collectively referred to as the "Waksal Shares"). Faneuil advised BACANOVIC that the Waksal Family Member had placed an order to sell all of the Waksal Family Member's ImClone stock. By approximately 9:48 a.m., the Waksal Family Member's approximately 39,472 shares had been sold for approximately $2,472,837. Faneuil further advised BACANOVIC that Samuel Waksal had requested that all of the ImClone stock in Samuel Waksal's Merrill Lynch account, approximately 79,797 shares, then worth approximately $4.9 million, be transferred to the Waksal Family Member and then sold. Samuel Waksal's written direction to Merrill Lynch stated that the transfer request was "URGENT - IMMEDIATE ACTION REQUIRED" and that it was "imperative" that the transfer take place during the morning of December 27, 2001.  

On December 27, 2001, at approximately 10:04 a.m. (EST), within minutes after being informed of the sale and attempted sale of the Waksal Shares, PETER BACANOVIC called MARTHA STEWART. After being told that STEWART was in transit and unavailable, BACANOVIC left a message, memorialized by STEWART's assistant, that "Peter Bacanovic thinks ImClone is going to start trading downward." At approximately 10:04 a.m., the price of ImClone stock was approximately $61.53 per share. BACANOVIC, who was on vacation, directed Douglas Faneuil to inform STEWART about the Waksal transactions when she returned the call.  STEWART would have lost $51,222. If STEWART had sold at the price at which ImClone stock closed on December 31, 2001, STEWART would have lost $45,673. On December 27, 2001, at approximately 1:39 p.m. (EST), MARTHA STEWART telephoned the office of PETER BACANOVIC and spoke to Douglas Faneuil, who informed her that Samuel Waksal was trying to sell all of the ImClone stock that Waksal held at Merrill Lynch. Upon hearing this news, STEWART directed Faneuil to sell all of her ImClone stock -- 3,928 shares. All 3,928 ImClone shares owned by STEWART were sold that day at approximately 1:52 p.m. (EST) at an average price of $58.43 per share, yielding proceeds of approximately $228,000.  It was Dec. 27, 2001, when Stewart, in a brief phone call from a Texas tarmac on her way to a Mexican vacation, sold 3,928 shares of ImClone Systems Inc., a company run by her longtime friend Sam Waksal. Stewart and Bacanovic always maintained she sold because of a preset plan to unload the stock when it fell to $60. ImClone now trades around $80.  The star witness against Stewart was Douglas Faneuil, himself, a young former brokerage assistant who vividly described Bacanovic's order when he learned Waksal was trying to sell: ''Oh my God. Get Martha on the phone.''  ImClone announced negative news the next day that sent the stock plunging. Stewart saved $51,000.  By selling a total of 3,928 shares of ImClone stock on the same day as the sale and attempted sale of the Waksal Shares, MARTHA STEWART avoided significant trading losses. If STEWART had sold at the price at which ImClone stock opened on
On or about January 2002, the Northeast Regional Office of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), an agency of the United States, the Federal Bureau of Investigation (the "FBI"), and the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New York commenced investigations into trading in ImClone securities in advance of the public announcement of the FDA's negative decision, including into the trades conducted by Samuel Waksal and MARTHA STEWART. The investigations focused on whether such trades were made in violation of federal securities laws and regulations that prohibit trading on the basis of material, nonpublic information. It was material to the investigations to determine, among other things, what was communicated to STEWART about ImClone on December 27, 2001 and the reasons for STEWART's December 27, 2001 sale of ImClone stock. 1505 of Title 18, United States Code; to make false statements, in violation of Section 1001 of Title 18, United States Code; and to commit perjury, in violation of Section 1621 of Title 18, United States Code.
At all times relevant to this Indictment, MARTHA STEWART's reputation, as well as the likelihood of any criminal or regulatory action against STEWART, were material to MSLO's shareholders because of the negative impact that any such action or damage to her reputation could have on the company which bears her name, as STEWART well knew. In MSLO's 1999 prospectus the company stated, "Our continued success and the value of our brand name therefore depends, to a large degree, on the reputation of Martha Stewart." On June 12, 2002, the news media widely reported that Samuel Waksal had been arrested and charged in a criminal complaint with insider trading. Following this announcement, the stock price of MSLO fell approximately 5.6%, from an opening price of $15.90 to a closing price of $15.  STEWART falsely stated that she had agreed with her broker "several weeks" after a tender offer made by Bristol-Myers Squibb to ImClone shareholders in October 2001, at a time when the ImClone shares were trading at about $70, that "if the ImClone stock price were to fall below $60, we would sell my holdings"; 
On February 27, 2004 JUDGE CEDERBAUM wrote 03 Cr. 717 (MGC) in response to Martha Stewart’s Motion for a Judgment of Acquittal under Rule 29 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.  The decision must be totally reversed as Judge Cederbaum dismissed the only civil claim for Security Fraud in Count Nine of the Indictment that US Attorney DAVID N. KELLEY and forcibly upheld the criminal claims for false statements and perjury by ordering that the jurists come to a criminal verdict.  Although Judge Cederbaum could have sustained a lucrative security fraud settlement she instead chose to risk living her own lie for as many days in jail as Martha Stewart and Peter Braconovic serve as the result of her sentencing judgment of July 16, 2004.  Due to the Misconduct of Judge Cederbaum and US Attorney DAVID N. KELLEY we must acquit both Martha Stewart and Peter Braconovic of all 9 counts forfeiting a Security Fraud settlement against them as they are entitled to $100,000 a piece in a security fraud settlement against the United States Deputy Attorney General for the Criminal Division John Comey whereby Ms. Stewart shall be more than reimbursed for the $30,000 fine she paid to the District Court.  By publishing this Acquittal decision Judge Cederbaum willfully disobeyed her own citation of Judge Friendly in regards to Curley v. United States, 160 F.2d 229(D.C. Cir. 1947) where he found that “The true rule …is that a trial judge, in passing upon a motion for directed verdict of acquittal, must determine whether upon the evidence, giving full play to the right of the jury to determine credibility, weigh the evidence, and draw justifiable inferences of fact, a reasonable mind might fairly conclude guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.” quoted in Taylor, 464 F.2d at 243.  
Stewart’s explanation that she had agreed with her broker to sell if ImClone’s share price fell below $60; her claim that she

reiterated her instructions to sell upon learning on December 27 2001.  In her statement of June 12, 2002. Attributed to

Stewart, the release read as follows:  In response to media inquiries, I want to reiterate the facts surrounding my sale of ImClone stock. I

purchased 5,000 shares of ImClone several years ago in the public market. I tendered all of these shares in the $70 per share tender offer made by Bristol Myers to all public shareholders of ImClone in October 2001.  Because the Bristol Myers offer was oversubscribed, I

was able to sell only about 20% of my shares. For the remaining 3,928 shares, I agreed with my broker several weeks after the tender offer, at a time when the ImClone shares were trading at about $70, that, if the ImClone stock price were to fall below $60, we would sell my holdings. On December 27, I returned a call from my broker advising me that ImClone had fallen below $60. I reiterated my instructions to sell the

shares. The trade was promptly executed, at $58 per share. I did not speak to Dr. Samuel Waksal regarding my sale, and did not have any nonpublic information regarding ImClone when I sold my ImClone shares. After directing my broker to sell, I placed a call to Dr.

Waksal’s office to inquire about ImClone. I did not reach Dr. Waksal and he did not return my call. In placing my trade I had no improper information. My transaction was entirely lawful.
The criminal charges against Stewart and Bacanovic arose from Stewart’s December 27, 2001 sale of 3,928 shares of stock in

ImClone Systems, Inc. (“ImClone”). ImClone is a biotechnology company whose then-chief executive officer, Samuel Waksal, was a

friend of Stewart’s and a client of Stewart’s stockbroker at Merrill Lynch, defendant Bacanovic. On December 28, 2001, the

day after Stewart sold her shares, ImClone announced that the Food and Drug Administration had rejected the company’s

application for approval of Erbitux, a cancer-fighting drug that ImClone had previously described as its lead product.  Within this statement, the Government charges as materially false Stewart’s statement that in her June 12th statement in response to the incarceration of Samuel Waksel, she explained what happened; her statement that the sale on December 27 was based on publicly available information; her reiteration that her sale was pursuant to the $60 agreement; and her statement that she was cooperating with the authorities fully and to the best of her ability.   

The pertinent section of the transcript of Stewart’s presentation on June 19 reads as follows:

I’ll be detailing our television and merchandising business efforts, and growth strategies. First, however, I would like to address an issue in which all of you are probably interested. And this is a statement that I prepared just a little while ago. I know that you, as media analysts, members of the investment community, and members of the press are aware that the media focus surrounding ImClone has generated an enormous amount of misinformation and confusion. Many have speculated about what might have happened. In my June 12th statement, I explained what

did happen, at least as pertains to me. I had no insider information. My sale of ImClone stock was entirely proper and lawful. The sale was based on information that was available to the public that day. The stock price had dropped substantially, to below $60. Since the stock had fallen below $60, I sold my shares, as I had previously agreed with my broker.  These are the essential facts. I am confident that time will bear them out. Earlier this year I spoke with the SEC and the U.S. Attorney’s Office. I cooperated with them fully and to the best of my ability. Contrary to what you might have read, I am also cooperating fully with the House Energy and Commerce Subcommittee, as confirmed by Representative James Greenwood, chairman of the subcommittee on CNBC last evening. I have nothing to add on this matter today. And I’m here to talk about our terrific company, Martha Stewart Living Omnimedia, which I’d like to start doing right now.
According to Judge Cederbaum a defendant seeking a judgment of acquittal under Fed.R.Crim.P. 29 faces a heavy burden. “Not only must the

evidence be viewed in the light most favorable to the government and all permissible inferences drawn in its favor, but if the evidence, thus construed, suffices to convince any rational trier of fact of the defendant’s guilt beyond a reasonable doubt,” then the case must be presented to a jury. United States v. Martinez, 54 F.3d 1040, 1042 (2d Cir. 1995) (citation omitted) (analyzing a postconviction challenge to the sufficiency of the evidence); see also United States v. King, No. 94 Cr. 455 (LMM), 1997 WL 43617, at *8 (S.D.N.Y. Feb. 4, 1997) (applying Martinez to a

motion for a judgment of acquittal). Moreover, “pieces of evidence must be viewed not in isolation but in conjunction,” United States v. Brown, 776 F.2d 397, 403 (2d Cir. 1985) (quoting United States v. Geaney, 417 F.2d 1116, 1121 (2d Cir. 1969).

With respect to inferences that may reasonably be drawn from the evidence, the Second Circuit has emphasized that “where a fact to be proved is also an element of the offense . . . it is not enough that the inferences in the government’s favor are permissible. We must also be satisfied that the inferences are sufficiently supported to permit a rational juror to find that the element, like all elements, is established beyond a reasonable doubt.” Martinez, 54 F.2d at 1043; see also United States v. Soto, 47 F.3d 546, 549 (2d Cir. 1995); United States v. D’Amato, 39 F.3d 1249, 1256 (2d Cir. 1994). The Supreme Court has noted that “[t]he defendant's intent in committing a crime is perhaps as close as one might hope to come to a core criminal offense ‘element.’” Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466, 493 (2000).
Judge Friendly, quoting Curley, explained the process as follows: It is the function of the judge to deny the jury any opportunity to operate beyond its province. The jury may not be permitted to conjecture merely, or to conclude upon pure speculation . . . . The critical point in this boundary is the existence or nonexistence of reasonable doubt as to guilt. If the evidence is such that reasonable jurymen must necessarily have such doubt, the judge must require acquittal, because no other result is permissible within the fixed bounds of jury consideration.

The Government argues that two other pieces of evidence give rise to permissible inferences of criminal intent. First, the Government argues that because Stewart’s statements are responsive in substance to the concerns articulated in the media regarding her trade in ImClone stock, an inference can be drawn that her statements were intended to induce reliance by the public, including investors, on her portrayal of the events.  Because this argument does not distinguish meaningfully between the general public and MSLO investors, it cannot support a permissible inference of intent.

Second, the Government argues that the effect of the June 12 statement may be considered when contemplating Stewart’s intent in issuing the June 18 statement. Her June 12 statement correlated with a temporary rebound of MSLO’s share price, and the Government contends that the jury could infer that Stewart was seeking a similar effect on June 19. But the very fact that the rebound was only temporary indicates that this piece of

evidence, while possibly relevant to materiality, is not germane to the issue of intent. If anything, the fact that Stewart issued the June 18 statement essentially unrevised, after the failure of the June 12 statement to effect any meaningful improvement in the share price, suggests that

to affect the market price of the stock. The Government has not offered any evidence that tips the balance in favor of a rational finding of

criminal intent beyond a reasonable doubt.
The jury verdict on March 5, 2004 was guilty on four counts apiece for Stewart and Bacanovic setting off a string of events as dramatic as the trial itself.  In April, lawyers for both defendants accused one juror of lying about an arrest record in order to get on the trial. Cedarbaum denied a request for a new trial, saying there was no proof the juror lied or was biased. And in May, federal prosecutors accused Larry F. Stewart, a Secret Service ink expert, of lying repeatedly in his testimony at the trial - mostly about the role he played in ink-analysis testing of a stock worksheet. The Stewarts are not related.  Just last week, Cedarbaum again denied new trials for Stewart and Bacanovic, this time saying there was ''overwhelming independent evidence'' to support the guilty verdicts.  Both the juror issue and the Larry Stewart perjury charges are expected to form the basis of the appeal.  Stewart resigned as CEO of Martha Stewart Living Omnimedia Inc., once a $1 billion media empire, when she was indicted in 2003. She gave up her seat on the board after she was convicted, but remains founding editorial director.  In late 2003, just weeks before her trial was to begin, Stewart told ABC News that ''what I did was not against the rules.'' She also said she was afraid of prison.  She added: ''But I don't think I will be going to prison, though.''
Whereas this judgment under the US Code provides little relief to legal researchers neither the Court nor the Security Exchange Commission have any right to recover from Martha Stuart for the shareholders.  If SEC had settled the insider trader case in one day under the Insider Trading Sanctions Act of 1984 as requested last month, Martha Stuart would have already been dismissed under Title 11 Chapter 11 §1112(a&b)3 and she would even have settled under 11USC§1111.  The trial court has demonstrated no competence with threats of incarceration or the trials pending sentencing.  It would be a crime to do anything but acquit Martha Stuart under Rule 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure The judiciary must be made to understand that an "injunction against insider trading serves only a remedial function and does not penalize a defendant for the illegal conduct [and] disgorgement successful conclusion of the trial merely restores a defendant to his original position without extracting a real penalty for his illegal behavior." Sentencing must be abandoned. The Act provides for penalties up to three times the profit gained or the loss avoided by the insider trading, providing a powerful deterrent to would-be violators.  The Court could have brought the case to conclusion a public trial of less than half an hour where parties would read this brief and sign this first page as settlement notice must be held before either a US District judge or the SEC.  As Ms. Stewart has been abused by an incompetent Court she is hereby acquitted under Rule 29a of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure she need not pay anyone, she is free to go.   
Ms. Stewart was requested to answer to these questions by email on July 13, 2004, at her leisure, and she settled all questions on July 16, 2004 for the press at her sentencing hearing;
1. What is the name of the company that suffered damages from Ms. Stewart’s insider trading? ImClone

2. Was the company forced to dissolve? Yes (    )  No  (  X  )

3. How much loss did Martha Stewart seek to avoid? $51,000

4. Is Ms. Stewart willing to pay three times this amount less time spent going to court?                   Yes ( X )  No  (   )

5. How much did she pay? $30,000

In General. Rule 10b5-1 under the Security and Exchange Act of 1934 provides that The "manipulative and deceptive devices" prohibited by Section 10(b) of the Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder include, among other things, the purchase or sale of a security of any issuer, on the basis of material nonpublic information about that security or issuer, in breach of a duty of trust or confidence that is owed directly, indirectly, or derivatively, to the issuer of that security or the shareholders of that issuer, or to any other person who is the source of the material nonpublic information.
The proviso that the "penalties shall be sufficient to promote compliance with these measures." Civil, liability is vital to an effective insider trading program. While it is possible to prove beyond a reasonable doubt (the standard in a criminal case) that a defendant engaged in insider trading based entirely on circumstantial evidence, it poses significant challenges and, in fact, almost all successful criminal insider trading prosecutions in the United States have rested at least, in part, on the testimony of cooperating witnesses.  Due to the full disclosure of Martha Stewart and her stock broker the court cannot take any criminal action against them.  The Court is competent only to settle the civil liability.  The Court cannot claim any damages as the result of allegations of initial non-compliance or misunderstanding as Mr. Stewart, her stockbroker and attorney have shared in the overwhelming burden of proof.  Immunity of witnesses seems to no longer be the issue but the Independence of the Judiciary to Grant a Judgment of Acquittal for Free.

Herman & MacLean v. Huddleston, 459 U.S. 375 (1983) taught us that Persons seeking recovery under 10(b) need prove their cause of action by a preponderance of the evidence only, not by clear and convincing evidence. The preponderance standard has been consistently employed in private actions under the securities laws. The balance of the parties' interests in this case warrants the use of the preponderance standard, which allows both parties to share the risk of error in roughly equal fashion. While defendants face the risk of opprobrium and civil liability that may result from a finding of fraudulent conduct, defrauded investors are the individuals that shall be rewarded in this private litigation.  Essentially defrauded investors in the company will need to present the security certificate that they purchased to the court for a share of Martha Stewarts’ civil liability for insider trading that abandoned fellow investors as they were going under

Cf. SEC v. C. M. Joiner Leasing Corp., 320 U.S. 344  sets precedence for the Security Exchange Commission to bring action before the Court. SEC v. Colello, 139 F.3d 674 (9th Cir. 1998) and SEC v. Graystone Nash, 25 F.3d 187 (3rd Cir. 1994) determined that Baxter v. Palmigiano, 425 U.S. 308, 318 (1976) as it applies is equally applicable in both criminal and civil cases as it upholds the Fifth Amendment right to remain silent, while Baxter does not forbid adverse inferences against parties to both civil and criminal actions when they refuse to testify in response, or give erroneous responses to probative evidence offered against them in the preliminary proceedings of the trial court.  These errors should not be interpreted as malicious as they have been remedied if these mistakes come to light at all
. 

Insider trading" is a term that most investors have heard and usually associate with illegal conduct. But the term actually includes both legal and illegal conduct. The legal version is when corporate insiders—officers, directors, and employees—buy and sell stock in their own companies. When corporate insiders trade in their own securities, they must report their trades to the SEC..

Illegal insider trading refers generally to buying or selling a security, in breach of a fiduciary duty or other relationship of trust and confidence, while in possession of material, nonpublic information about the security. Insider trading violations may also include "tipping" such information, securities trading by the person "tipped," and securities trading by those who misappropriate such information.

Examples of insider trading cases that have been brought by the SEC are cases against:

· Corporate officers, directors, and employees who traded the corporation's securities after learning of significant, confidential corporate developments; 

· Friends, business associates, family members, and other "tippees" of such officers, directors, and employees, who traded the securities after receiving such information; 

· Employees of law, banking, brokerage and printing firms who were given such information to provide services to the corporation whose securities they traded; 

· Government employees who learned of such information because of their employment by the government; and 

· Other persons who misappropriated, and took advantage of, confidential information from their employers. 

Because insider trading undermines investor confidence in the fairness and integrity of the securities markets, the SEC has treated the detection and prosecution of insider trading violations as one of its enforcement priorities.
The SEC adopted new Rules 10b5-1 and 10b5-2 to resolve two insider trading issues where the courts have disagreed. Rule 10b5-1 provides that a person trades on the basis of material nonpublic information if a trader is "aware" of the material nonpublic information when making the purchase or sale. The rule also sets forth several affirmative defenses or exceptions to liability. The rule permits persons to trade in certain specified circumstances where it is clear that the information they are aware of is not a factor in the decision to trade, such as pursuant to a pre-existing plan, contract, or instruction that was made in good faith.  Rule 10b5-2 clarifies how the misappropriation theory applies to certain non-business relationships. This rule provides that a person receiving confidential information under circumstances specified in the rule would owe a duty of trust or confidence and thus could be liable under the misappropriation theory.

As Corporate insiders-meaning a company's officers and directors, and any beneficial owners of more than ten percent of a class
;  Martha Stewart and her stock broker are clearly entitled to more respect than jail time. Time spent by Martha Stewart as a witness to a criminal prosecution shall be taken into consideration as a liability deduction as the Court failed in its prima facie arguments to be representing the defrauded investors and unnecessarily and criminally threatened Martha Stewart and her stockbroker with jail time.  The Court HEREBY FORFEITS AUTORITY TO SETTLE CIVIL LIABILITY ON SECURITIES LITIGATION and IS LIABLE FOR EVERY UNLAWFUL DAY OF DETENTION under Art. 5 (HE) of the Statute for the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia for the crimes of persecution and imprisonment.  JUDGE CEDERBAUM is reprimanded for abuse of judicial discretion in regards to US Attorney DAVID N. KELLEY indictment warranting a civil security fraud settlement. These judicial employees need to be convicted by the US 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals.  Any further lawsuits against Ms. Stewart should be directed to the US Court of International Trade.  The general opinion of HOSPITALS &ASYLUMS is that (1) the prosecutors and judge joined into a conspiracy with the FBI and Deputy Attorney General John Comey to kidnap Martha Stewart and Peter Bacanovic; (2) the allegations of false statements and obstruction of justice in the Superceding Indictment are slanderous and false representation of a judge, a prosecutor, a Deputy Attorney General lying to make a case against a Ms. Stewart and her stockbroker friend worth $150,000 to a competent Court; (3) all criminal and civil charges against Martha Stewart and Peter Bacanovic must be dismissed and they are themselves each  entitled to $100,000 compensation from the Assistant Attorney General for the Anti-Trust Division R. Hewitt Pate, as are all fraud and anti-trust offenders who are not immediately dismissed and settled.  

Certiorari for the Second Circuit Court of Appeals
John & Timothy Rigas v. Security Exchange Commission

NEW YORK (July 8) - Adelphia Communications Corp. founder John Rigas and his son Timothy were convicted Thursday of conspiracy, bank fraud and securities fraud. Rigas and his son were convicted of all 15 securities fraud charges against them and other counts. Another Rigas son, Michael, was acquitted of conspiracy charges in the partial verdict; the jury was undecided on most of the remaining counts against him. Former Adelphia assistant treasurer Michael Mulcahey was found not guilty of conspiracy and securities fraud. John Rigas, 79, and Timothy Rigas each face 30 years in prison on the most serious charge, bank fraud John Rigas showed no reaction to the verdict, leaning forward in his chair and looking down at the table. A judgment of acquittal under Rule 29c of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure is required because detention is simply not appropriate for these financial matters. 
 The jurors returned the partial verdict after telling the judge they were having trouble reaching a decision on some counts at the fraud trial. They had asked for guidance on how to reach a decision without revealing how they were split. The judge told them he would accept a partial verdict. It was the eighth day of deliberations following a three-month trial.  Judge Leonard Sand said he would give further instructions Friday on the undecided counts. He sent jurors home for the day and instructed them not to listen to media coverage of the case.  The Rigases and Mulcahey were charged with hiding $2.3 billion in debt at the cable company, deceiving investors and stealing company cash to line their own pockets.  The elder Rigas founded the company in 1952 in tiny Coudersport, Pa., and turned it into one of the nation's largest cable firms.  While most of the alleged fraud took its form in hidden debt, the trial was also notable for examples of the eye-popping personal luxury that has marked other white-collar trials.  Prosecutor Christopher Clark led off his closing argument by saying John Rigas had ordered two Christmas trees flown to New York, at a cost of $6,000, for his daughter. Rigas also ordered up 17 company cars and the company purchase of 3,600 acres of timberland at a cost of $26 million to preserve the pristine view outside his Coudersport home.  Peter Fleming, his lawyer, told the jurors that the claim was ridiculous - ''If you saw this on 'Seinfeld,' you'd double up'' - and that the company simply wanted to keep the small town attractive to its employees.  Still, the Adelphia founder stole with such gusto from his company, prosecutors said, that Timothy Rigas became concerned and limited his father to withdrawals of $1 million per month.  The prosecution relied heavily on the testimony of two former Adelphia executives, James Brown and Karen Chrosniak, to describe a complex scheme to lie on financial filings and hide Adelphia debt.  But Chrosniak, in tearful testimony, said John Rigas was ''basically in the dark'' about the company's money problems as its financial filings were being prepared.  

This document is sufficient for the Court to dismiss these cases by means of Judgments of Acquittal in the best interest of the investors in accordance with Title 11 Chapter 11 §1112(a&b)3. To set forth a rational basis for sentencing that can be settled today under probation statute 18USC(227)§3563 that clarifies that the only offenders entitled to jail space at all are Class A and B Offenders facing 50 years in jail; whereas the Rigases are respectable self made businesspeople they are clearly entitled to a “probation officer” who is a competent corporate lawyer and can get their company out of debt; a situation that should not be stigmatized with the fraudulent word, “fraud”. 
Certiorari for the Fifth US Circuit Court of Appeals

600 Camp Street New Orleans, LA 70130
Lea Fastow, Former Executives of Enron & SEC v. FBI & Andrew Weissmann, director of the Justice Department's Enron Task Force & Deputy Attorney General James Comey in regards to E.O.  13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force 
Chapter 11 
Former Enron Corp. CEO Kenneth Lay pleaded innocent Thursday July 8, 2004 to federal charges that he was involved in a wide-ranging scheme to deceive the public, company shareholders and government regulators about the energy company that he founded and led to industry prominence before its collapse as has happened so many times before under Rule 10b5-1 of the Security and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  Mr. Lay and other Enron executives must be immediately acquitted under Rule 29a of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure due to the insufficiency of evidence to maintain a criminal claim in the face of the supremacy of conversion to a dismissal under Title 11 Chapter 11 §1112(a&b)3 that could yield a $90 million civil judgment for the SEC.  It is therefore determined by a person other than the debtor that it is in the best interest of creditors and the estate that the criminal prosecution be dismissed as the criminal claim threatens to cause unreasonable delay for the debtor (s) that is prejudicial to creditors of these unsecured claims and in contravention to the law of nations and the findings of Erpenbeck et al v. FBI et al Certiorari for the US 6th Cir.No. 04-3456&7 (1) that fraud is not a penal offense (2) prosecutors are the only people who ever exhibit such behavior by clear and convincing evidence. The civil trial need not take longer than a day and might earn from nothing if Mr. Lay is broke or $90 million for administration by the SEC to shareholders shortchanged when stocks fell from $90 a share to mere pennies and the friends of the Court.   If Mr. Law and his associates managed to salvage a disproportionate amount of wealth since Enron collapsed it is only fair that they make a Plan with the SEC under Subchapter II to compensate their shareholders under 11USC§1111.  Due to the unfortunate detention of Lea Fastow on July 16, 2004 to serve a one year sentence for failing to file a claim on her joint tax return this appeal must also include a habeas corpus for her release.  The timing of her detention illegally biased the entire Enron case and she must be released, as like all the people in this case other than the prosecutors and judges who reneged on the bankruptcy protection, she is protected under Art. 11 of the International Covenant of Civil and Political Rights 2200A (XXI) of 16 December 1966 and cannot be imprisoned for failure to fulfill contractual obligations.
The contents of the criminal indictment titled, US v. Richard Causey, Jeffrey Skilling & Kenneth Lay Cr. No. H-04-25(S-2) were released a few hours after Lay was taken away in handcuffs after surrendering to the FBI Thursday morning. The new indictment, now totalling 53 counts, accused Lay, Skilling and Causey of enriching themselves through salaries, bonuses, grants of stock and stock options. It names Lay in 11 counts: one of conspiracy, two of wire fraud, four of securities fraud, one of bank fraud and three of making false statements to banks. If convicted on all counts, the Justice Department said Lay could receive up to 175 years in prison plus fines possibly totaling more than $5.7 million.

''Not guilty, your honor,'' Lay, speaking loudly and clearly, told U.S. Magistrate Judge Mary Milloy at a court hearing hours after he surrendered to the FBI and was hustled to the federal courthouse in handcuffs. Milloy set his bond at $500,000, and Lay emerged from the courthouse less than an hour later. Prosecutors had sought a $6 million bond, saying he was a flight risk. Lay was allowed to keep his passport because he travels internationally on business, but Milloy said if he left the country he would have to seek permission from the court.  

The indictment of Lay, 62, who also was Enron's chairman, caps an investigation that snared dozens of other employees and executives but took nearly three years to reach the man at the top. Enron's collapse in late 2001 cost investors billions of dollars, put thousands of Enron employees out of work and wiped out retirement savings for many. The company, once admired, became a symbol of corporate greed and excess, and its fall was followed by a string of scandals at other companies.  Lay entered the packed courtroom and smiled at his wife, Linda, who had driven him before dawn to the Houston FBI headquarters. She rose from her seat to pat him on the back, then was told by a marshal she could have no contact with her husband.  Lay was accompanied by attorney Michael Ramsey. When Milloy asked if Ramsey was his lawyer, Lay drew laughter from spectators by responding: ''I think his billings will indicate that I have hired Mr. Ramsey.'' After learning of the indictment on Wednesday, Lay said in a statement, ''I have done nothing wrong, and the indictment is not justified.'' Andrew Weissmann, director of the Justice Department's Enron Task Force, said Thursday that Lay's arrest called to task the ''top echelon'' of Enron and showed ''no one is above the law.''  After Skilling's resignation, ''Ken Lay took the helm of the criminal scheme,'' Weissmann said. ''Rather than come clean and tell the unvarnished truth about Enron, Lay chose to conceal and distort and mislead at the expense of shareholders and employees, people to whom he owed a duty of complete candor.''  But Lay's lawyer Ramsey said before entering the courthouse, ''Ken was not in any conspiracy.''

Enron was an Oregon energy corporation founded by Kenneth Lay in 1986 with headquarters in Houston, Texas that engaged in the sale and purchase of natural gas, construction and ownership of pipelines, power facilities and energy related businesses and telecommunication services.  Before filing for bankruptcy on December 2, 2001 Enron was the seventh largest corporation in the United States.  The indictment signed by US Attorney Joshua R. Hochburg, Andrew Weismann as director of numerous special attorneys for the Enron Task Force alleges that Enron (a) manipulated financial data to cover losses (b) made false and misleading statements regarding Enron’s financial to maintain Enron’s industrial credit rating and stock prices in contravention to numerous laws primarily 15USC§78j(b), §78ff, Rule 10b5-1, 17CFR240.10-b, 18USC§1343 and §2. The indictment calls for the forfeiture of many assets to the United States under 18USC§981.  The indictment particularly focuses on Lay's behavior after Skilling abruptly resigned in August 2001 before Enron's collapse. Skilling had succeeded Lay as CEO six months earlier. He was indicted in February on nearly three dozen counts of fraud and other crimes.  Prosecutors allege Lay knew Enron was preparing to announce massive third-quarter losses and a $1.2 billion writedown in shareholder equity, yet told Enron employees in a Sept. 26, 2001 Internet chat that he had strongly encouraged management to buy Enron stock. ''Some, including myself, have done so over the last couple of months and others will probably do so in the future,'' he said. ''My personal belief is that Enron stock is an incredible bargain at current prices.'' Then on Oct. 12, 2001, he told a credit rating agency that Enron and its auditors had ''scrubbed'' the company's books and that no additional writedowns would be forthcoming. Four days later, the company announced those big losses, but the shareholder equity writedown was not in Enron's press release. The indictment alleges Lay also knew Enron was facing a $700 million writedown in its water business, Azurix, but didn't disclose detailed information. In addition, it alleges Lay knew Enron had shifted hundreds of millions of dollars in losses from its retail energy unit to its wholesale trading unit to hide the retail energy unit's actual poor performance. Ramsey said he would push for the former Enron chief executive to go to trial ahead of other executives charged in the investigation. He maintains Lay did nothing wrong and cast blame on former chief financial officer Andrew Fastow, who pleaded guilty to two conspiracy counts in January. Fastow admitted to orchestrating partnerships and financial schemes to hide Enron debt and inflate profits while pocketing millions of dollars for himself.  Prosecutors have aggressively pursued the one-time celebrity CEO and friend and contributor to President George W. Bush who led Enron's rise to No. 7 in the Fortune 500 and resigned within weeks of its stunning failure. Lay is the 30th and highest-profile individual charged. ''We're not trying to conceal anything,'' Lay told analysts on Oct. 23, 2001, according to the indictment. ''We are not trying to hide anything.'' He also told employees that same day: ''Our liquidity is fine; as a matter of fact, it is better than fine, it is strong.'' But prosecutors allege Lay knew Enron had been forced to offer its pipelines as collateral to get a $1 billion bank loan to maintain liquidity.  Then on Nov. 12, 2001, in a call to analysts and in another effort to combat bad publicity, he said: ''We don't have anything we are trying to hide. I am disclosing everything that we've found.'' But prosecutors allege Lay knew that he and other senior Enron managers had not disclosed a litany of negative facts about Enron's finances. The counts alleging bank fraud accuse Lay of improperly drawing from his lines of credit, and exposing banks to a higher risk of loss, to directly or indirectly buy and carry margin stock.  Skilling succeeded Lay as CEO in February 2001 and resigned abruptly six months later, just weeks before the scandal broke. He was indicted in February on nearly three dozen counts of fraud and other crimes.  Waiting to testify for the prosecution is Fastow, who pleaded guilty to two conspiracy counts in January. Fastow admitted to orchestrating partnerships and financial schemes to hide Enron debt and inflate profits while pocketing millions of dollars for himself.  Enron's collapse was the first of a series of corporate scandals that led to Congress' passage of sweeping reforms to securities laws with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act two years ago. Thousands of Enron's workers lost their jobs, and the stock fell from a high of $90 in August 2000 to just pennies, wiping out many workers' retirement savings.  In summary the indictment spuriously calls all business transactions fraudulent without making any concessions for the investors who prosecutors call, “victims”, remain defrauded because of the criminal investigation of a bankruptcy proceeding 

An investment scheme promising a fixed rate of return can be an "investment contract" and thus a "security" subject to the federal securities laws. Section 2(a)(1) of the 1933 Act and §3(a)(10) of the 1934 Act define "security" to include an "investment contract," but do not define "investment contract." The Supreme Court has established that the test for determining whether a particular scheme is an investment contract is "whether the scheme involves an investment of money in a common enterprise with profits to come solely from the efforts of others." SEC v. W. J. Howey Co., 328 U. S. 293, 301. This definition embodies a flexible, rather than a static, principle that is capable of adaptation to meet the countless and variable schemes devised by those seeking to use others' money on the promise of profits. The profits are profits--in the sense of the income or return--that investors seek on their investment, not the profits of the scheme in which they invest, and may include, for example, dividends, other periodic payments, or the increased value of the investment. There is no reason to distinguish between promises of fixed returns and promises of variable returns for purposes of the test, so understood. In both cases, the investing public is attracted by representations of investment income. Moreover, investments pitched as low risk (such as those offering a "guaranteed" fixed return) are particularly attractive to individuals more vulnerable to investment fraud, including older and less sophisticated investors. Under the reading respondent advances, unscrupulous marketers of investments could evade the securities laws by picking a rate of return to promise. This Court will not read into the securities laws a limitation not compelled by the language that would so undermine the laws' purposes to offer investors a profit.  The test for whether a particular scheme is an investment contract was established in our decision in SEC v. W. J. Howey Co., 328 U. S. 293 (1946). We looked to "whether the scheme involves an investment of money in a common enterprise with profits to come solely from the efforts of others."  This definition "embodies a flexible rather than a static principle, one that is capable of adaptation to meet the countless and variable schemes devised by those who seek the use of the money of others on the promise of profits." We hold that an investment scheme promising a fixed rate of return can be an "investment contract" and thus a "security" subject to the federal securities laws see…Securities and Exchange Commission v. Edwards certiorari to the US 11th Cir.No. 02-1196. 1/13/2004

Civil Judgment must persevere in the US tradition of Chapter 11 bankruptcy and the protestations and persecutions of the Department of Justice Enron Task Force that has abused their authority under E.O.  13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force to criminally prosecute alleged white collar criminals on many occasions warranting dismissal of the armed forces.  When the Executive Order was signed on July 2002 there was general peace between Justice and Corporate America but at the end of 2003 and 2004 the Corporate Fraud Task Force became an extremely destructive criminal entity that is corrupting the judiciary and corporate America nationally by making criminal cases against respectable business and trades people such as Martha Stewart, Bill Erpenbeck and now Kenneth Lay. 

The alarming world record incarceration rates of the USA exceeding 700 per 100,000 inhabitants with 2.1 million people cause us to seriously consider the applicability of criminal sentencing in these bankruptcy proceedings that have traditionally been the bread and butter of the civil lawyers who create legitimate securities that pay investors from the money that the SEC recovers from the Enron executives.   Jurists and justices are concerned that these corporate collapses are in fact entirely caused by the inept criminal investigations of the FBI, who are now attempting to incarcerate their innocent victims. SEC v. Edwards certiorari to the US 11th Cir.No. 02-1196. 1/13/2004 demonstrated that the SEC settles Statute of Fraud disputes civilly, in writing, between merchant and purchaser as defined under §2-201 of the Uniform Commercial Code. 

Whereas, Criminal trials and incarceration for white collar criminals are explicitly prohibited under both; 

Art. 11 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 999 U.N.T.S. 171, of Mar. 23, 1976 that states, 

“No one shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of inability to fulfill a contractual obligation”

Art. 11(2) of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 217 A (III) of 10 December 1948 that states, 
No one shall be held guilty of any penal offence on account of any act or omission which did not constitute a penal offence, under national or international law. Kenneth Lay’s indictment can therefore only be read to justify the payment of former Enron shareholders with his alleged surplus wealth; it is wildly inappropriate to hold him and other Enron executives criminally liable for mistakes that caused the collapse of the company.  Wherefore all Enron prisoners shall be released, cases dismissed and their defrauded shareholders settled with the assets that can be recovered, up to $100 million including the fine to the Department of Justice for their mismanaged case, that could have settled the shareholders civilly in one day under 11USC§1111, as we shall now do. 
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Motion for a Judgment of Acquittal

In Summary, due to prosecutorial indiscretion, developer Bill Erpenbeck and Kentucky Bankers John Finnan and Marc Menne all need a judgment of acquittal after declaring guilty verdicts under Rule 29 d(1) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, effective immediately.  In sentencing Bill Erpenbeck to 20-30 years for bank fraud on April Fool’s Day 2004 the trial court failed to meet the formal civil requirements for Statute of Fraud dispute resolution between merchant and purchasers under §2-201 of the Uniform Commercial Code that never requires incarceration. By imposing criminal sentencing the Prosecution exhibits the willful maliscious intent called scienter and prosecutorial indiscretion to warrant a fraud conviction themselves while the homebuilder and bankers demonstrate insufficient intent to continue holding them responsible for an honest mistake corrected years ago.  The false imprisonment of the homebuilder and threats of sentencing for the Bank executives of the Former People’s Bank of Northern Kentucky in the trial court in North Eastern Kentucky scheduled for Oct. 23, 2004 in Covington lead the Bar of the US Supreme Court to secure the instant release of one prisoner and instant dismissal of the criminal prosecution of him and his banking associates while the Supreme Court reviews US Sentencing and the ABA Kennedy Commission Report
 leaving everyone peace. 

On July 1, 2004 Judge Arthur Spiegel issued sentencing from a check-kiting scheme that ran from 1999 to early 2002 leading to the diversion of $33.9 million of home-purchase proceeds into Erpenbeck Co. bank accounts.  $27 million of the allegedly delinquent contracts had already been settled before the homebuilders were detained and business became untenable.  Sentencing is clearly triple jeopardy;
1. Tony Erpenbeck, 69, the father of convicted bank swindler Bill Erpenbeck, was sentenced this afternoon to nearly six years in federal prison for attempting to influence testimony of his daughter, Lori, in the long-running bank fraud case. 

2. Lori Erpenbeck, whose lawyer filed papers Wednesday saying imprisonment would be "completely inappropriate" faced 108 to 135 months in prison on one bank fraud conviction, received a lighter sentence of just a year and one day.

3. Michelle Marksberry, Erpenbeck Co.'s closing agent, received a two-year sentence for bank fraud.
I

A. The Cincinnati Business Courier reported on June 23, 2004 that, John Finnan and Marc Menne could each serve a minimum nine-year sentence. To reduce their sentencing they agreed to continue working with investigators who are looking into the Erpenbeck scandal, in which homebuilder Bill Erpenbeck diverted closing checks from home sales into an account at Peoples Bank, leaving hundreds of Erpenbeck Co. homebuyers without clear titles to their homes. Erpenbeck was sentenced to 30 years in prison and ordered to pay $26.3 million in restitution for outstanding contracts that he could not honor as the result of being incarcerated.   At a hearing at U.S. District Court in Covington this 2004, Finnan, who was president of People's Bank, and Menne, who served as vice president, entered guilty pleas to charges of willful misappropriation of $2 million in bank funds, bank fraud and processing false loan applications.  The report says the declarants will pay restitution of $9 million to $11 million, plus fines of $15,000 to $1 million.  Malicious prosecution in 2002 for the same charges has already resulted in the demise of People's Bank of Northern Kentucky.  The Bank of Kentucky was forced to buy the bank's assets in 2002.  Sentencing for both Menne and Finnan has been set for Oct. 23, 2004
. 
C. This Fraud case officially began in July 2002 at roughly the same time E.O.  13271 Establishment of the Corporate Fraud Task Force was signed by President Bush to provide direction for the investigation of corporate security fraud, accounting fraud, mail and wire fraud, money laundering, tax fraud and other related financial offenses.  The US District Court happened to issue a guilty verdict against Mr. Erpenbeck and People’s Bank of Northern Kentucky at that time.  Federal prosecution suddenly became illegally penal in a second review.  In their formerly solvent trial in 2002 the District Court issued a $34 million judgment against Mr. Erpenbeck in regards to alleged disputed contracts while associating with the People’s Bank of Northern Kentucky.  In January of 2004 Mr. Erpenbeck was suddenly, mysteriously and very publicly jailed by the US District Court S. District of Ohio and sentenced to 20-30 years in prison.  He had paid or honored $27 million of the $34 million in outstanding contracts. This senseless act of destruction by the Prosecutor left the Federal Court responsible for $26.3 million of un-honored development contracts and $10 million reparations with no more than $15,000 - $1 million in fines to settle the Housing and Urban Development Section 8 Fraud Recovery under 24CFR§792.202.  The Supreme Court should take this opportunity to overrule mandatory minimum sentencing.
C. Article 11 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 999 U.N.T.S. 171, of Mar. 23, 1976 that state, “No one shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of inability to fulfill a contractual obligation” and Art. 11(2) of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 217 A (III) of 10 December 1948 states, 
No one shall be held guilty of any penal offence on account of any act or omission which did not constitute a penal offence, under national or international law, at the time when it was committed. Nor shall a heavier penalty be imposed than the one that was applicable at the time the penal offence was committed..
The V Amendment to the US Constitution elaborates, 

Nor shall any person be subject for the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb.  Nor shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law, nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation

D. The Supreme Court is highly encouraged to take this opportunity to instantly acquit the declarants of Criminal Charges and release the Prisoner.  Kerr v. United States Dist. Court for Northern Dist. of Cal., 426 U.S. 394 402 (1976).observes that “the petitioner must show that his right to issuance of the writ is clear and indisputable”. The acquittal is clearly required as the financial errors of the homebuilder and banker have already been largely settled and cannot be used to justify incarceration as they are civil and financial in nature.  The crimes and threat to society presented by the innocent “corporate frauds” are overshadowed by the grievious errors of the “terrorist” prosecutors and criminal judges whose deprivation of rights under color of law 18USC(13)§242 and kidnapping under 18USC(55)§1201 are the single identifiable cause for the current non-fulfillment of contracts.  The case is remanded to the US 6th Circuit Court of Appeals to take responsibility for checking up on the $26.3 million of un-honored development contracts, $10 million reparations and $15,000 - $1 million in fines settling the Housing and Urban Development Section 8 Fraud Recovery under 24CFR§792.202.  None of these “frauds of the court” continue to be a threat to society or toll the Class A or B felony threshold for mandatory incarceration set forth by Probation statute 18USC(227)§3563.  The prosecution however presents a real threat to corporate America and the economic livelihood of our nation that can tolerate mistakes made in good faith by the declarants but cannot tolerate the continued criminal prosecution of those confessing declarants who have the right to have their civil and criminal bank fraud claims dismissed by the Attorney General under 12USC(43)§4206.

II 

A. The sentencing Judge Susan J. Dlotte, from the District Court of the Southern District of Ohio reversed USA v. Erpenbeck to read Erpenbeck et al v. FBI et al misc. 1:04mc034.  The case number may be forgery as the result of the Clinton County Prosecutor who broke into the author’s house in Hamilton County to return files the investigator had previously destroyed in an illegal wire tap. We hope that Judge Susan Dlotte will verify this case number to determine whether a forgery occurred during the unlawful search of Prosecutor.  In light of the intangible damages caused by the felonies of Prosecutors Judge Dlotte has no choice but to uphold her reversal titled, Erpenbeck v. FBI and the United States must release Bill Erpenbeck, without further ado.  The original brief was suspiciously drafted by the Court the day after the author was forced to close his account with US Bank because they appeared to have become federally corrupt after receiving a copy of the initial Erpenbeck filing of Hospitals & Asylums with the Federal Reserve demanding Erpenbeck’s release in February of 2004 and protecting the People’s Bank of Northern Kentucky.  The author suspects that the corporate fraud task force petitioned for a search warrant from the federal prosecutor and US Bank in conspiracy to break into the former depositors house and seize his recent bank statements that were glaringly cruel and proved the Federal Reserve incited bank fraud 18USC(63)§1344 (2) against low income depositors that has led many of them to close their accounts and banks to make several billion dollars through the false pretense of interest rate hikes.  The Clinton County Prosecutor a week or two later seems to have seized upon these unrelated warrants to perpetrate a crime “In Defense of Innocent Vincent Doan”, an innocent man falsely accused of kidnapping and murdering his own girlfriend, to cross two county lines to conduct a wire tap and unkowingly destroy over $5 Trillion of Code Law in a ZIP disk in contravention to 18USC(47)§1030(a)(5)(iii) by intentionally accessing a protected computer without authorization, and as a result of such conduct, causes damage.  The prosecutors had to break in twice to return stolen files, library books and temporal projects that had expired after an instant lawsuit was filed with the US District Court, Ohio Attorney General, Governor, who must Pardon and Release both falsely accused aggravated murderers “Innocent Vincent Doan (Clinton)” and “Jerome Campbell (Hamilton)” and the County Prosecutor who is still required to rehire the entire office on the basis of no less than 100 pages of criminal law per person and get a County Clerk that publishes all their cases on the Internet.  This first terrifying white collar case in the US District Court Southern District of Ohio is primarily attributed to the prohibition of the death penalty and increased scrutiny on sentencing in the Hamilton County Court that led to a flight of extremely malicious prosecutors from the County Court to the fraud mis-trial they had arranged with the FBI to satisfy their demand for terrorism and populated the court to such an extent that the judge couldn’t resist.  The District Court is not much more civil than the County Prosecutor and should seriously consider both (1) prohibiting all criminal prosecution from the Federal Court (2) indexing all decisions on the Internet so that they could scientifically evolve from a den of fraudulent slavers and thieves to a place where businessmen and scholars could learn the law, be paid for their work and settle their disputes without fear of imprisonment or unpleasantness at all.   

III

A. The submission of this brief in its second draft was timed to make the arguments of Vice President Cheney v. USDC 03-475 Certiorari to the District of Columbia Circuit Argued April 27, 2004–Decided June 24, 2004.  It was inspired because Mr. Cheney visited Cincinnati to throw the opening pitch for the Cincinnati Reds in a yearly Presidential tradition on one of Erpenbeck’s many days of trial. Secretary of Health and Human Services Tommy Thompson gave a lecture on diabetes on the day of the final sentencing hearing.   The initial filing failed to affect a release for Bill Erpenbeck.   It is also interesting to note that the District Court has so far refused to furnish criminal records from the trial as requested similar to the Supreme Court case Cheney v. USDC.  

B. In a 7-2 decision, justices said the lower court should consider whether a federal open government law could be used to get task force documents under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706.  Shortly after taking office, President Bush put Cheney, a former energy industry executive, in charge of the task force which, after a series of private meetings in 2001, produced recommendations generally friendly to industry. The Sierra Club, a liberal environmental club, and Judicial Watch, a conservative legal group, sued to get the records. They argued the public has a right to information about committees like Cheney's. The organizations contended that environmentalists were shut out of the meetings, while executives like former Enron Corp. Chairman Kenneth Lay were key task force players.  Sierra Club lawyer David Bookbinder said that it's clear that the groups will get some papers, but it's less clear when because the case may end up a second time at the Supreme Court.  Judicial Watch President Tom Fitton said that ''ultimately, we can't believe courts will endorse the Bush administration's assertion of unchecked executive secrecy and power”.  The Supreme Court was the latest stop in a nearly three-year fight over access to records of the task force that prepared a national energy strategy in 2001. Most of the recommendations stalled in Congress. A separate lawsuit seeks thousands of documents under a separate law, the Freedom of Information Act. A judge ruled this spring that those documents should be released.  The president is not above the law, Kennedy wrote, but there is a ''paramount necessity of protecting the executive branch from vexatious litigation that might distract it from the energetic performance of its constitutional duties.''  This policy is no different for corporate executives who must continue working if they are to honor their contracts.

C. Citing United States v. Nixon, 418 U.S. 683 the Court found while the President is not above the law, the Judiciary must afford Presidential confidentiality the greatest possible protection, Communications’ confidentiality is of utmost importance Clinton v. Jones, 520 U.S. 681.  The common-law writ of mandamus against a lower court such as this request for a, judgment of acquittal, is codified at 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a): “The Supreme Court and all courts established by Act of Congress may issue all writs necessary or appropriate in aid of their respective jurisdictions and agreeable to the usages and principles of law.” This is a “drastic and extraordinary” remedy “reserved for really extraordinary causes.” Ex parte Fahey, 332 U.S. 258, 259—260 (1947). “The traditional use of the writ in aid of appellate jurisdiction both at common law and in the federal courts has been to confine [the court against which mandamus is sought] to a lawful exercise of its prescribed jurisdiction.” Roche v. Evaporated Milk Assn., 319 U.S. 21, 26 (1943). Although courts have not “confined themselves to an arbitrary and technical definition of ‘jurisdiction,’ ” Will v. United States, 389 U.S. 90, 95 (1967), “only exceptional circumstances amounting to a judicial ‘usurpation of power,’ ” present a “clear abuse of discretion,” Bankers Life & Casualty Co. v. Holland, 346 U.S. 379, 383 (1953), “will justify the invocation of this extraordinary remedy,” Will, 389 U.S., at 95., but must also ask whether the District Court’s actions constituted an unwarranted impairment of another branch in the performance of its constitutional duties. Pp. 12—20. Justice Scallia and Justice Clarence Thomas wrote separately Thursday to say U.S. District Judge Emmet Sullivan ''clearly exceeded'' his authority in ordering the administration to release records. He said they may ask the appeals court to speed up the case.

IV

A. Standard Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners, adopted Aug. 30, 1955 by the First United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders, U.N. Doc. A/CONF/611, annex I, E.S.C. res. 663C, 24 U.N. ESCOR Supp. (No. 1) at 11, U.N. Doc. E/3048 (1957), amended E.S.C. res. 2076, 62 U.N. ESCOR Supp. (No. 1) at 35, U.N. Doc. E/5988 (1977) and the Declaration of Protection of All People from Enforced Disappearances.A. res. 47/133, 47 U.N. GAOR Supp. (No. 49) at 207, U.N. Doc. A/47/49 (1992). Adopted by General Assembly resolution 47/133 of 18 December 1992 compels the Court to locate the prisoner, Erpenbeck, and submit this brief approved, to the warden of the detention facility, so that he would be immediately released.

B. Under Rule 11 of the Rules of the Supreme Court as Certiorari to a United States Court of Appeals before Judgment A petition for a writ of certiorari to review a case pending in a United States court of appeals, before judgment is entered in that court, will be granted only upon a showing that the case is of such imperative public importance as to justify deviation from normal appellate practice and to require immediate determination in this Court.  The intervention of the Supreme Court shall be considered justified by the compelling need to uphold Hospitals & Asylums Sentencing Standards 24USC(9)§326, to release the illegally detained prisoner who has been relocated to some location, probably within the continental United States, within 5 days of the discovery of the location of the prisoner.  The consortium of Public Housing Authorities and Banks will supervise the management of the improperly bankrupted homebuilding and development corporation under 24CFR Sec. 792.202 Section 8 Fraud Recoveries for the approval of the 6th Circuit Court of Appeals when they decide Case No. 04-3456&7 at the end of 2004.

C. Under 28 U. S. C. § 2101(e) the Supreme Court has jurisdiction after one month but not longer than 6 months, to review the April’s Fools Day decision of Judge Spiegel at the US District Court Southern District of Ohio DC 0648-1 & 03-00050 that sentenced developer Bill Erpenbeck to 20-30 years in prison for bank fraud and associated obstruction of justice as this trial was not merely unconstitutional under the double jeopardy clause of the V Amendment and the right to a public trial and counsel for defense under the VI Amendment that prohibits such confidential prosecutions;

1. the trial was offensive to the bankruptcy tradition of the US Courts, 

2. threatens the sanity of the budget balancing authority of the Office of Management and Budget and Hospitals & Asylums;

3. failed to register with the Hamilton County Clerk or Bureau of Prisons;

4. is within the Power of the US Supreme Court to remedy as the local jail reports the prisoner to have been relocated by the US Marshall’s to an undisclosed location.  

5. The Criminal Justice representation of the Erpenbeck Trial was so appalling that the average observer would have to conclude he has possibly been murdered while before the scrutiny of the public in a solicitation to the Attorney General for a repeat of the destructive bank fraud of 2004 that has thankfully been averted by the intervention of Hospitals & Asylums and the Federal Reserve.

6. The Public Housing Authorities involved in this multi-jurisdictional dispute regarding the independent status of a developers contracts that should be reviewed by local and/or federal offices of Housing and Urban Development.

D. In contravention to the Standard Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners, adopted Aug. 30, 1955 by the First United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders, U.N. Doc. A/CONF/611, annex I, E.S.C. res. 663C, 24 U.N. ESCOR Supp. (No. 1) at 11, U.N. Doc. E/3048 (1957), amended E.S.C. res. 2076, 62 U.N. ESCOR Supp. (No. 1) at 35, U.N. Doc. E/5988 (1977) the Erpenbecks have been and continue to be;

(1) deprived of communication, 

(2)  unregistered in the Hamilton County Clerk where originally detained nor in the Inmate Locator of the Bureau of Prisons.  

E. We fear for his safety.  The clerks of the 6th Circuit Court of Appeals suggested on the telephone that the author be appointed counsel to the Court however the declarant declined on grounds that without Erpenback the author could not fulfill the requirements of counsel for the defense under the 6th Amendment to the US Constitution and Rule 9 of the Rules of Practice of the Supreme Court.  This is not the first case where prisoners have been filed missing at the 6th Circuit Court of Appeals by Hospitals & Asylums.  In Constitutional Mental Health Commission v. Pauline Warfield Lewis Center  No. 00-4185 both separate alleged mentally ill habeas corpus petitions resulted in the unlawful transfer and disappearance of the charges while before the scrutiny of the Circuit and Supreme Courts.   Bodzin v. Valle Vista LLC. IS U.S. District Court C-2-577 reported the illegal transfer of a psychiatric prisoner from Clark County tried in Sanders vs. Bodzin et al. Ohio 2nd  D.C. App 02-CA-0003 to Southern Indiana from whence the prisoner was illegally transferred to a Northern Indiana facility.  Jeffrey Steele v. Hamilton County Community Board of Mental Health No. 99-1771. Ohio Supreme Court. 10/18/2000 was also reported to not be a patient of the State Mental Institution where he was reported to be held and there are no leads.  The 6th Circuit Court of Appeals and District Courts will clearly need to keep much closer tabs on the whereabouts of prisoners and be more enthusiastic about investigating judicially disappeared prisoners because they and their private investigators are authorized for relief, like all pro bono investigators of human trafficking, from the Office of Management and Budget and the Secretary of State so as to relieve the burden on private investigators who are not typically paid for the work that they have done and rarely have enough for national investigations without open lines of communication.  Unless the Circuit Court has suddenly adopted a more aggressive strategy against disappearance the assistance of the Supreme Court and Executives will be required to release the prisoner(s). 
V

A. The Rules Governing Complaints of Judicial Misconduct and Disability are published by the Judicial Council of the 6th Circuit.  These Rules set forth a system whereby complaints about judicial misconduct and disability are submitted without charge to the Circuit Executive who reviews the case and may be petitioned for the disclosure of his decision that is submitted to the Judicial Council for a more thorough review.  A special committee of bankruptcy judges may be called upon to investigate the claim and shall be afforded the money for witness fees.  Chandler v. Judicial Council of Tenth Circuit, 398 U.S. 74. Until this Trial the local District Court has been able to plead supremacy in criminal sentencing to the criminal trials of the state court however the Erpenbeck fiasco has shown that society does not truly benefit from having two criminal prosecutors in a single town and the high rates of institutionalization coupled with the recent rash of hard to believe corporate raiding by the District Courts have demonstrated once and for all that the District Courts should not criminally prosecute at all, in fact their judges and US Attorney should devote their knowledge to civil trials and the enforcement of civil rights in the state courts to process crime in co-operation with the ordinary local police force as they co-operate inter county, inter state and international.  This moratorium on criminal prosecution in the Federal Judiciary would ultimately lead to the release of roughly 150,000 prisoners detained by the Federal Bureau of Prisons.  The institutions could be incorporated into the state correctional system with the demolition of old and surplus prisons.  Should the prisoner(s) be permanently missing or murdered it would be appropriate to fire Judge Spiegel, Judge Dlotte and the US Attorney for Cincinnati.  The Claims against the District Court are listed as follows;

(1) Under Ohio RC § 2725.25. No prisoner to be sent out of state. No person shall be sent as a prisoner to a place out of this state, for a crime or offense committed within it. A person imprisoned in violation of this section may maintain an action for false imprisonment against the person by whom he was so imprisoned or transported, and against a person who contrives, writes, signs, seals, or countersigns a writing for such imprisonment or transportation, or aids or assists therein.  Under RC § 2725.21 the Clerk owes Hospitals & Asylums Forfeiture for refusal to issue writ A clerk of a court who refuses to issue a writ of habeas corpus, after an allowance of such writ and a demand therefor, shall forfeit to the party aggrieved the sum of five hundred dollars and another $500 to the Erpenbecks if it should be discovered that they were relocated out of state without their consent. 

(2) Most critically the District 
has not automatically informed the Circuit Court or public records of where the prisoner is located in contravention to Standard Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners (1977) and the District Court is too fearsome for the private investigators to request the court records for fear of being disappeared for conducting an investigation under the Declaration of Protection of All People from Enforced Disappearances (1992).  The Court, like all courts should issue a guarantee to protect Reporters and Courthouse Witnesses from being falsely arrested as the International Court of Justice has done in the Advisory Opinion Difference Relating to the Immunity From Legal Process of a Special Rappateur of the Commission on Human Rights that grants these witnesses whether or not they are officially employed immunity from unreasonable prosecution and incarceration without totally dismissing popular claims for relief stemming from misconduct, particularly slanderous human rights claims, caused by their litigious behavior.  
B. In Bankers Trust Co. No. 95-3199 the Federal Reserve demonstrated their effectiveness investigating banking accounting and disputes.  As extraordinary performers under civil law there is no cause for criminal action, in fact criminal action of the Court against the Erpenbecks is well considered a Crime by or Affecting Persons Engaged in the Business of Insurance whose activities affect Interstate Commerce under 18USC(47)§1034 because of the large amount of relief Mr. Erpenbeck was already providing as insurance to his contract holders.  The Kentucky Supreme Court has recited these rules as follows: [A]s to the  manner of construction of insurance policies,  Kentucky law is crystal clear that exclusions are to be narrowly  interpreted and  all questions resolved in favor of the insured.  Exceptions and exclusions are to be strictly construed so as to render the insurance effective.  The current incarceration of Erpenbeck clearly renders the insurance ineffective and due to the time spent not working and outright theft has deteriorated has developed into a Major Fraud Against the United States  18USC§1031 perpetrated by the District Court for preventing the hardworking Erpenbecks from working on contracts that do not need a gavel, but a hammer.  The civil claim to enforced bankruptcy due to fraudulent business practices needs to be reviewed by the 6th Circuit because the Erpenbecks seem to be hardworking and honest people who have been singled out for the persecution of the District Court.  The Court of Appeals will need to determine whether the Erpenbecks are competent enough businesspeople to continue running an independent development contracting agency by placing their assets in the protective care of the local Public Housing Authorities for 24CFR Sec. 792.202 Section 8 Fraud Recoveries.  

C. The 2004 judgment of the Court reports the Erpenbecks as having only $26.3 million in outstanding contracts. These contracts need to be cared for by local Public Housing Authorities to ensure that work is paid for and that contracts paid for are honored as the contractor has been incarcerated.  Kelly v. Bank One 6th Circuit No. 93-4211 (1996) defined that a scheme to defraud consists of  "[i]ntentional  fraud, consisting in deception intentionally practiced to induce another to part with property or to  surrender some  legal right, and which  accomplishes the  designed end." Id. at 1216.  To allege intentional  fraud, there must be "proof of misrepresentations or omissions which were 'reasonably calculated to deceive persons of ordinary prudence and comprehension. '" Although the District Court in the Eprenbeck Case has managed to prove that the Erpenbecks were less than perfect businessmen in 2002 the hypotheses of scienter, maliscious intent, is overturned as the result of the extensive payments made for the class action by the business owner Blount Fin. Servs., Inc. v. Walter  E. Heller & Co., 819 F.2d 151,  153 (6th Cir. 1987)  (citation omitted).  

D. In Peoples Bank & Trust v. The Aetna Casualty, et al. 6th Cir. No. 95-6250 demonstrated the need to prove manifest intent in frauds and the insurance obligation to compensate investors and depositors victimized in the fraud although this sort of recklessness is simply a characterization of a high degree of bad business judgment used in making loans.  The Court must therefore refrain from making criminal allegations against the Erpenbecks in the name of the investors who exercised bad judgment investing in a man who had a reputation for not paying and was furthermore being victimized by the Federal Court. Unlike the Erpenbecks, the Federal Court has never demonstrated any cognizance for their role in the defrauding of the investors.  All the current damages against the corporation are clearly directly the result of serious crimes committed by the District Court, it is quite possible that most of the damages in 2002 were also caused by the strange disappearance of documents and breaches in communication caused by the criminal units operating under the jurisdiction of the District Court, and it is nearly certain that all the current allegations this 2004 are fabrications of the District Court and FBI in order to commit the extremely fraudulent crime of prison slavery.  In FDIC  v. St. Paul  Fire & Marine  Insurance  Co.,  942  F.2d  1032,  1035  (6th  Cir.  1991), "[a]lthough the  concept of 'manifest  intent' does not  necessarily require that the employee actively wish  for or desire a  particular result,  it does require more than a mere probability…[M]anifest intent exists when a particular result is  'substantially certain' to follow from conduct.'" In FDIC  v. United Pacific Ins. Co., 20 F.3d 1070, 1078 (10th  Cir. 1994) "evidence of reckless conduct can support an inference of manifest intent");   

VI

A Joint Bankruptcy proceedings under 11USC§302 are a respected method for determining whether the Erpenbecks should continue serving the United States as a private corporation, as government employees or as retirees. After the commencement of a joint case, the court shall determine the extent, if any, to which the debtors' estates shall be consolidated by the Representatives of Department of Housing and Urban Development, who are highly recommended to employ the Erpenbecks as case managers on salary to administrate loans and contracts under the supervision of the Cincinnati Department of Community Development who shall supervise all contracts in accordance with 24CFR Sec. 792.202 Section 8 Fraud Recoveries that grant the PHA the authority to retain the proceeds.  It is recommended that the alleged offenders be employed by the state with the same contractual responsibilities of their former positions of corporate financial executive authority, but without the liberty to earn a profit as a private security.

 (a) Where the PHA is the principal party initiating or sustaining an action to recover amounts from tenants that are due as a result of fraud and abuse, the PHA may retain, the greater of: (1) Fifty percent of the amount it actually collects from a judgment, litigation (including settlement of lawsuit) or an administrative repayment agreement pursuant to, or incorporating the requirements of, Sec. 982.555 of this title; or (2) Reasonable and necessary costs that the PHA incurs related to the collection from a judgment, litigation (including settlement of lawsuit and release of prisoner) or an administrative repayment agreement pursuant to, or incorporating the requirements of, Sec. 982.555 of this title. Reasonable and necessary costs include the costs of the investigation, legal fees and collection agency fees.(b) If HUD incurs costs on behalf of the PHA in obtaining the judgment, these costs must be deducted from the amount to be retained by the PHA or billed by fax to the Office of Management and Budget 202-395-3888.

(b) Chief Judge of the US District Court Southern District of Ohio, Arthur Spiegel, is recommended to step down to just Judge.  Judge Speigel’s leadership has been criminal from day one, the court became so oppressive that African American Civil Magistrate Judge Jack Sherman made the morally difficult decision to retire from the court.  The court has become quite disreputable since the Erpenbeck scandal.  Judge Susan J. Dlotte presents a far more successful, swift and civil Chief Judge for the Cincinnati Office.  Her office is filled with friendly Clerk’s and her judgment upholds the civil rights of civilians in regards to the county and federal prosecutors and police.  Make Susan J. Dlotte, Chief Judge, of the Southern District Court of Ohio. 

Certiorari for the United States Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals

Post Office Box 193939, San Francisco, CA 94119-3939
Andrew Wiederhorn, co-CEO Fog Cutter Capital Group Inc. v. NASDAQ   

Motion for a Pardon or Judgment of Acquittal under Art. 11 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 999 U.N.T.S. 171, of Mar. 23, 1976 that states, “No one shall be imprisoned merely on the ground of inability to fulfill a contractual obligation” and the bankruptcy protection granted to those who settle under 11USC§1111
Wiederhorn, 38, earned a reputation as a financial wunderkind in the early 1990s as he turned investments in the secondary mortgage loan market into lucrative business. By 1997, he had become one of the five highest-paid chief executives in Oregon. Wiederhorn is scheduled to begin an 18-month prison term Aug. 2, even as Fog Cutter officials continue to insist he did nothing wrong. Lance Caldwell, the assistant U.S. attorney who prosecuted Wiederhorn, said the case was complicated and suffered from the loss of its star witness, Jeffrey Grayson, the founder and former CEO of Capital Consultants, the company that loaned Wiederhorn $160 million before it collapsed in September 2000 and was seized by federal regulators.  Mr. Wiederhorn pleaded guilty June 3 to filing a false tax return and paying an illegal gratuity to the former chief executive of Capital Consultants, a Portland investment manager.  Wiederhorn pleaded guilty to two crimes.  

The first -- forgiving a loan guaranty by Jeffrey Grayson in violation of U.S. pension law -- without his having any criminal intent and pursuant to the advice and permission of some of the Northwest's most prominent lawyers that recognize pension law is not a crime. To reiterate, he is going to do time for a crime, or rather infraction of the civil law, the government concedes he did not specifically intend to do.  Wiederhorn has repeatedly expressed responsibility and regret for the losses suffered by the pension funds. He has made substantial financial contributions to make up for these losses. And the pension funds were, in fact, almost totally reimbursed for the losses attributable to Wiederhorn's investments -- with total payments in the settlement of the civil suits exceeding $110 million, let alone all the profits received over the prior years.  Wiederhorn at all times relied on the advice of some of the best legal experts in Portland. They approved his forgiveness of Grayson's personal guaranty of $3 million, not the $160 million often wrongly reported. Wiederhorn passed three different lie-detector tests administered and reviewed by two retired FBI agents. He provided prosecutors with videotapes of these sessions and even offered to take tests by a government examiner -- an offer that was declined.

In the second of the two violations, Wiederhorn pleaded guilty to a crime of filing a false tax return in which he had included a loss arising from the sale of loans to a family company. That loss was real, did not reduce his tax payment at all and did not cost taxpayers or the federal government one dime, some crime. 

None of the acts to which Wiederhorn pleaded involved Fog Cutter Capital Group Inc., a majority of which he and his family own.  A multimillion-dollar compensation package for convicted CEO Andrew Wiederhorn likely is reported that it will prompt the Nasdaq stock exchange to delist Fog Cutter Capital Group Inc., the company's attorney says."We've been told to expect the delisting letter on Tuesday," said Lanny Davis, a Washington, D.C., attorney representing Fog Cutter.  Nasdaq officials declined comment. The delisting worsens problems faced by Wiederhorn and his company. Capital Consultants collapsed in September 2000, in part because a former Wiederhorn company defaulted on a $160 million debt. Investors, many of them union workers whose retirement money was invested with Capital Consultants, lost about $350 million when the company failed. But Fog Cutter's stock since has declined and a shareholder has sued the company.  Davis said Fog Cutter would appeal any delisting and accused Nasdaq officials of being uninterested in the facts of the Wiederhorn case and it should be added totally without any respect for civil rights.  The company, however, has suffered not so much from Wiederhorn's guilty plea but from the generous deal he cut with the Fog Cutter board after the plea.  One day after Wiederhorn appeared in U.S. District Court to plead guilty, Fog Cutter announced it intended to retain him as co-CEO and co-chairman of the board with full salary and bonus. The company also agreed to pay Wiederhorn a $2 million "leave of absence".  2-202 of the Uniform Commercial Code assures us that in a person’s final written parol, or payroll, may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior agreement or contemporaneous oral agreement.  Fog Cutter officials are justified in the compensation deal at the time, saying the company couldn't afford to lose Wiederhorn's management skills. 

The company board also feared Wiederhorn would sue for unfair termination if he wasn't retained.  But the deal caught the attention of investors and the financial press. On June 10, TheStreet.com, a Web-based financial news site, listed Wiederhorn's deal in its column, "The Five Dumbest Things on Wall Street This Week."  On June 15, Fog Cutter received a letter from Nasdaq officials saying the New York-based stock exchange was requesting "information relating to the government investigation and related matters," according to a recent filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.  Nasdaq, like the other major stock exchanges, has broad powers over its 3,300 member companies. It can remove, or delist, a company for a variety of financial reasons, such as failing to meet minimum stock prices or shareholder equity requirements.  Fog Cutter shareholder Jeff Allan McCoon, in a lawsuit filed Tuesday, argued that Fog Cutter's board members "have developed debilitating conflicts of interest" with regard to Wiederhorn.  Donald Berchtold, a company director and Fog Cutter's newly named co-chief executive officer, is Wiederhorn's father-in-law and grandfather to his six children. Don H. Coleman, also a director and Fog Cutter's co-chairman, is a longtime family friend.  Davis, the Fog Cutter attorney, accused Nasdaq lawyers of unfairly targeting Wiederhorn. Davis has leveled similar complaints against federal prosecutors, saying they used "coercive" tactics in pursuing his client.For exactly this and other reasons in the interest of Fog Cutter and its shareholders, its seven-member board of directors chose to pay Wiederhorn during his period of custody. They did so in part because of his pivotal role in the company's future success and his past performance. Had the offenses to which Wiederhorn pleaded guilty anything to do with corporate financial fraud, accounting fraud or any other intentional criminal misconduct in the other company, Fog Cutter's board would not have agreed to the paid leave of absence agreement that they did. 

Criminal Sentencing is offensive to the 13th and 14th amendments to the US Constitution.  The facts, in all truth and fairness, express nothing but a business loss that Andrew Wiederhorn was only mildly associated with and he has already made adequate compensation.  NASDAQ should be friendly to Fog Cutter and sympathetic for Mr. Wiederhorn’s civil rights. He must be acquitted under Rule 29(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure as there is insufficient evidence to maintain a “criminal” conviction necessary to sustain incarceration under the 13th Am. US Constitution.  The 14th Amendment states, “No state shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any state deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law”.  The bankruptcy protection provided by the settlement to under 11USC§1111 is clearly being violated by the criminal trial and sentencing.  The court does not even make the hypocritical claims of fraud often used to bypass the Section 19 of the Oregon Constitution that prohibits the imprisonment for debt.  Without even making fraudulent criminal claims or even catching a real case of civil liability, known as debt, the Court and Government cannot sustain the criminal conviction or permit Mr. Wiederhorn to stay in jail for one day the thresholds of prison set forth by probation statute 18USC(227)§3563 that calls for a criminal sentence of 50 statutory years.  Mr. Wiederhorn is excellent businessman who, is not facing any criminal charges, does not have even 1 year of allegations against him.  Like the other debts he paid his debts civilly before the Court, before being placed in jeopardy for his life and limb for a second time. Lanny J. Davis is counsel to Fog Cutter Capital Group Inc. and former special counsel to President Clinton from 1996 to 1998 
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